itedamered

contents

June 30, 1972

the university

- Official announcements --Increase in Notre Dame Report subscription rates
 - --Notre Dame Report summer schedule
- New Accounting System 327 Blue Cross changes
- Historic Episcopalian
- consecration
- Tuition increase
- 328 Advance guidance tests
- M.B.A. Commencement ND-SMC coordinated 328
- 329
- department Mediaeval Institute photographs
- Upward Bound
- 329 Morris Inn open house
- 329 London Law School summer session
- Athletes' academic averages
- Association of American University Presses, Inc.

faculty notes

- University appointments
- 330 Non-university appointments
- Miscellany 331
- 331 Necrology

events

- Notre Dame Art Gallery
- Summer stage and film
- presentations.
- 332 Music program

office of advanced studies

Notes for Principal Investigators

333 Accounting Reports for Sponsored Programs for July, 1972

Information Circulars

- Social Science Research Council Grants to Minority Scholars for Research on Racism and Other Social Factors in Mental Health (No. FY72-74)
- National Science Foundation Changes in Due Date for In-Service Institutes for Secondary School Teachers (No. FY72-75)
- Current Publications and Other Scholarly Works

Monthly Summary

- Awards Received 342
- Summary of Awards Received and Proposals Submitted
- Closing Dates for Selected Sponsored Programs

documentation

- Memorandum to Departmental and Fund Administrators from the Comptroller
- AAUP Grievance Committee
- Final Report, 1972 Commencement Program Committee
- 348 Clerical staff's summer hours

the university

Official announcements

INCREASE IN NOTRE DAME REPORT SUBSCRIPTION RATES: Effective with the first issue of the 1972-73 academic year next September 15, the mail subscription rate for Notre Dame Report will be \$6 an academic year. The publication will continue to circulate free to all faculty, professional staff and students holding positions on official University councils and committees. Individual copies of Notre Dame Report will be available in the University Bookstore for 30 cents. These increases were dictated by a review of the publication's printing costs during its first year of existence.

NOTRE DAME REPORT SUMMER SCHEDULE: The summer schedule of <u>Notre Dame Report</u> has been changed from that announced in issue Number 18, and the Index will now be published in August, not June.

Notre Dame Report No. 19--Published June 30 (Deadline: Dame Report No. 20--Published July 28 (Deadline: July 17)

Index for Volume 1 (issues 1 through 20)--Published August 25

The regular fortnightly schedule will resume with the $\underline{\text{Notre Dame}}$ $\underline{\text{Report}}$ of September 15. Note the lengthy period from July 28 to September 15 in which no regular issue of $\underline{\text{Notre}}$ $\underline{\text{Dame}}$ $\underline{\text{Report}}$ will be published.

New accounting system

On July 1, 1972 the University will implement a redesigned and reprogrammed accounting system.

The new system will provide departmental and fund administrators with reports that are similar in format to those provided in the past, but modified where appropriate to provide additional information.

The revised accounting system likewise incorporates an account numbering system that is restructured (see "Documentation"). It is of paramount importance that all administrators be advised of this account number change. When the new system becomes operational on July 1, 1972 all account numbers previously in use at the University will be invalidated.

The Comptroller's Office will communicate new numbers to all budget unit and fund administrators prior to July 1, 1972. Any administrator or principal investigator who has not received such a communication by that date should contact the Comptroller's Office.

The implementation of the revised accounting system necessitates the conversion of large amounts of data from old files to the new computer based files. Because of the volume of data to be converted and the fact that some of the data will not be available for conversion until the University accounting for the fiscal year ending on June 30, 1972 is completed, it will be necessary to suspend printing of the monthly budget unit and fund reports for the month of July. The initial reports under the new system will be prepared at the end of August but will include all accounting activity since the first of July.

Blue Cross changes

TO: All Staff Professional Administrators Executives, Managers, and Specialists

RE: Blue Cross-Blue Shield

Rates

Effective July 1, 1972 there will be changes in the monthly premium rates for our Blue Cross-Blue Shield Hospital-Surgical insurance coverage. The changes are as follows:

| | Present Rates | Rates 7-1-72 |
|--------|---------------|--------------|
| Single | \$13.86 | \$15.65 |
| Family | \$36.68 | \$41.64 |

New Fringe Benefit and Eligibility

Effective also July 1, 1972 for those participating in the program the University will contribute one-half of the premium cost for Blue Cross-Blue Shield for all Staff Executives, all Staff Managers, and also for those Staff Specialists who have completed 5 years of service at the University.

Deductions

Commencing in June (we deduct a month in advance) eligible participants in the Blue Cross-Blue Shield program will have individual deductions reflecting the new benefit as follows:

| | Present Deduction | Future Deduction for One Year |
|--------|-------------------|----------------------------------|
| Single | \$13.86 | \$7.82 |
| Family | \$36.68 | \$20.82 |

Future Eligibility

Professional Administrators not enrolled in Blue Cross-Blue Shield may enroll in the Blue Cross-Blue Shield plan during the regular re-enrollment period in January, 1973 and each January thereafter. Those eligible Administrators (who join in January, 1973) will receive the premium fringe benefit effective July 1, 1973 at the then current level of University contribution.

Professional Administrative Specialists participating in the Blue Cross-Blue Shield program who reach their 5th anniversary of employment will be eligible for the benefit on that date.

Joseph F. O'Brien Director of Personnel

Joseph 7. O Brien

Historic Episcopalian consecration

A bishop was consecrated for the Episcopal Church in ceremonies June 24 in Sacred Heart Church.

The historic ceremonies were hailed by Rev. Theodore M. Hesburgh, C.S.C., as "a sign of ecumenical maturity." The use of Sacred Heart for the consecration had the approval of Bishop Leo J. Pursley of the Diocese of Fort Wayne-South Bend.

Rev. William C.R. Sheridan was consecrated fifth bishop of Northern Indiana by Bishop Walter C. Klein, who is retiring as bishop of the Episcopalian diocese. Assisting Bishop Klein as co-consecrators were Bishop James M. Montgomery of Chicago and Bishop Francis C. Rowinski of the Western Diocese of the Polish National Catholic Church, which is in communion with the Episcopal Church.

This was not the first use of a Catholic church for a Protestant consecration, but it had no precedent locally. The first Protestant prayer service in Sacred Heart took place during a United Church of Christ meeting on campus in 1968. Two years before that, a newly formed Methodist congregation used a campus auditorium for Sunday services while they built a church north of the campus. And Episcopalians are no strangers to Notre Dame's campus. In the summer of 1969, a special national convention of the Episcopal Church in the United States was held at Notre Dame.

Tuition increase

The University of Notre Dame has announced a \$150 increase in undergraduate tuition to \$2,450 a year and an increase of \$75 in average room and board fees to \$1,100.

In a letter to the parents of Notre Dame undergraduates, Rev. Theodore M. Hesburgh, C.S.C., University president, said the increase was "necessary to maintain the quality of a Notre Dame education and the calibre of student life here at a time when educational costs and other costs continue to rise."

Father Hesburgh also noted that the increase "would safeguard the fiscal integrity" of the institution at a time of widespread financial stress in higher education.

The tuition for Notre Dame's Graduate School was raised \$185 to \$2,230 a year.

Advance guidance tests

Freshman students planning to attend Notre Dame in September will receive advance guidance tests this summer at regional testing centers across the nation, according to a program developed by Dr. Emil T. Hofman, dean of the Freshman Year of Studies.

Designed to provide the best available academic program and counseling service for the incoming students, the tests will include subject matter achievement tests, academic and career interest tests, and personality tests. A student activity report will be included as part of the program.

Advance testing, rather than orientation week tests in September, will permit counselors to recommend and plan remedial courses or advanced sections as the scores indicate, Hofman said.

Testing centers have been set up in Chicago, Cincinnati, St. Louis, Cleveland, Syracuse, Pittsburgh, Boston, New York City, Philadelphia, Los Angeles, Detroit and Indianapolis. Students may also take the tests at Notre Dame on July 7, 14, 21 and 28, and on September 1.

M.B.A. Commencement

The M.B.A. program in the College of Business Administration graduated its largest number of students -- 67 -- in May. Lawrence J. Ryan, Jr., received the award for outstanding academic achievement, and he and Walter T. Sulkowski received the Dean's Award for outstanding contributions to the program. Selected by the M.B.A. Class of 1972 as outstanding teachers were Associate Profs. Paul F. Conway and Edward R. Trubac of the Department of Finance and Business Economics.

ND-SMC coordinated department

The University of Notre Dame and Saint Mary's College will launch an experimental, cooperative effort between their Departments of Theology and Religious Studies beginning this fall.

Rev. David Burrell, C.S.C., chairman of the Department of Theology at Notre Dame and Dr. Harold Weiss, chairman of the Department of Religious Studies at Saint Mary's, explained that the new effort will be called a "coordinated department" and will not involve "unification" of the departments, nor any transfer of funds.

While maintaining separate chairmen and budgets, the departments will cooperate in hiring and curriculum development. Students at both institutions will have totally free access to all departmental offerings.

Mediaeval Institute photographs

The University of Notre Dame Mediaeval Institute has acquired 1,000 glossy photographs of illuminated liturgical manuscripts in the libraries of Florence, Sienna, Lucca and Prato.

Institute Director Canon Astrik L. Gabriel said some of the photographs are very precious because they are of manuscripts later damaged by the Florence flood of a few years ago.

In addition, the Institute has acquired 1,000 photographic reproductions relating to the iconography of Mediaeval student and University life.

These reproductions will be added to the Institute's Frank M. Folsom Ambrosiana Microfilm and Photographic Collection, which is supported by the Samuel H. Kress Foundation and contains some 15,000 photographs of miniature paintings in Milan's Ambrosiana Library from the Classical, Mediaeval, Rennaissance and Baroque periods. All materials are available through interlibrary loan.

Upward Bound

About 80 South Bend area high school students are participating in the University's annual Upward Bound program which began June 18.

For the second year, the Notre Dame classes will be open to both boys and girls from low income families "who are chosen for their potential, not their achievement," according to Archie J. Bradford, director. Girls were enrolled at Saint Mary's College and boys at Notre Dame before last year.

Both Notre Dame and Saint Mary's staff members will direct a program of instruction in history, English

art, mathematics, radio, writing and community outreach projects. Brother James Everett, St. Joseph High School principal, will again serve as chief counselor, and a group of 10 college students, formerly participants in Upward Bound, will serve as tutor-counselors.

Bradford said 24 of 25 high school seniors in last summer's program successfully completed their freshman year at colleges or universities. Two graduates in the May commencement class at Notre Dame previously participated in the Upward Bound program originated at the school in 1966, he added.

Morris Inn open house

The Morris Inn held an open house June 25, marking its 20th anniversary as a hostelry for campus visitors and unveiling the results of the most extensive face-lifting in its history.

Improvements included expansion and new equipment in the kitchen area; expansion and restyling of the public dining room, including a new, adjacent cocktail lounge; remodeling of the main lobby, the corridors and guest rooms, and renovation of the main floor private dining area and the lower-level reception-dining room, which is now known as the Blue and Gold Room.

The Inn was a million dollar benefaction of Ernest M. Morris, a 1906 law graduate who founded in 1917 the firm now known as Associates Corporation of North America. It was completed in 1952.

London Law School summer session

A record number of American law students will be attending summer session classes at the University of Notre Dame Law School at Brunel University, London, according to a preliminary report by Professor Peter W. Thornton, director of the program.

Classes began Monday, June 19, for 108 students from 62 American law schools. A combined British and American faculty are presenting courses in federal jurisdiction, international business transactions, public international law, and other subjects through August 1.

Athletes' academic averages

All but four of the 94 seniors among the University of Notre Dame's varsity athletes were graduated with their class in May, Prof. Michael DeCicco, assistant advisor to Notre Dame athletes has reported.

The four who did not graduate are football players who reduced their academic program while recovering from serious injuries. They will receive their degrees in January, 1973.

DeCicco's own fencing team again led those in nine

other sports in overall average for the spring terms. The 21 fencers averaged 3.090 for the last academic term, compared with an average of 2.826 for all 365 varsity athletes. The average for all athletes was virtually the same as that for the University's 6,200 undergraduates, which is 2.893.

Association of American University Presses, Inc.

"The Impending Crisis in University Press Publishing: A Challenge for the Seventies" was the topic June 23-24 when more than 250 directors and staff

officers from 70 institutions in this nation and abroad met at Notre Dame for the annual meeting of the Association of American University Presses, Inc.

Rising publication costs and reduced purchases by budget-conscious libraries are causing many universities, including Notre Dame, to order feasibility studies of their publishing enterprises with the possibility they will be discontinued in favor of academic operations with a higher priority.

Emily M. Schossberger, a director of the national group and recently retired director of the Notre Dame Press, opened the conference with an official welcome. Rev. James T. Burtchaell, C.S.C., Provost, extended greetings from the University at a special luncheon.

faculty notes

University appointments

Rev. James T. Burtchaell, C.S.C., Provost, has announced the following adminstrative appointments:

<u>Dr. George Brinkley</u> reappointed as chairman of the Department of Government and International Studies for a three-year term;

<u>Dr. Robert E. Burns</u>, associate professor of history, as associate dean of the College of Arts and Letters;

John Ehmann named acting director of the University of Notre Dame Press. Assistant director since 1971, Ehmann replaces Miss Emily M. Schossberger, who has retired after 29 years in academic publishing. Miss Schossberger became director of the Press in 1960.

James Buiteball, esc.

(Rev.) James T. Burtchaell, C.S.C. Provost

Non-university appointments

<u>Dr. Rudolph S. Bottei</u>, professor of chemistry, has been appointed treasurer of the Division of Analytical Chemistry of the American Chemical Society. He is also chairman of the Membership Committee, and has been selected a member for the ACS Division of Chemical Education Examination Subcommittees on both Qauntitative Analysis and Instrumental Methods of Analysis.

Rev. David Burrell, C.S.C. has been elected as chairman of the Central Committee for the society for Religion in Higher Education, 1972-73.

<u>Dr. Thomas J. Mueller</u>, professor of aerospace and mechanical engineering, and <u>Dr. Vincent P. Goddard</u>, associate professor of aerospace and mechanical engineering have been elected president and vice-president, respectively, of the St. Joseph Valley Section of the American Institute of Aeronautics and Astronautics.

<u>Dr. Norlin G. Rueschhoff</u>, associate professor of accountancy, has been named to the International Accounting Committee of the American Association for the 1972-73 year.

<u>Dr. and Mrs. Thomas R. Swartz</u> have been selected as Danforth Associates for the University by the Danforth Foundation. The Associates program is designed to encourage student-faculty relations, and "provide a strong counterforce against the depersonalized atmosphere present in much of American higher education," according to the Foundation.

Miscellany

Dr. John G. Beverly, assistant professor in accounting, will present a paper at the Concurrent Session D., American Accounting Association's 56th Annual Meeting in Salt Lake City on August 22. The title of the paper is "A Portfolio of Trade Credit Risks Employing Ledger-Based Decision Parameters."

<u>Dr. Michael J. Francis</u>, associate professor of government and international studies, was chairman of the panel on "The Impact of Military Aid on Latin America" sponsored May 26-27 by the Center for Policy Study of the University of Chicago.

Canon A.L. Gabriel, director of the Mediaeval Institute, has been invited by the University of Munich to give a lecture July 5 on the international relations of the University of Paris and the University of Inglostadt. Inglostadt was the mediaeval predecessor of the present day University of Munich which is observing its 500th anniversary this year.

Prof. Gabriel is also going to address the University of Saarbrucken on the history of the German scholars at the Mediaeval University of Paris. Canon Gabriel also presented an address at the University of Paris.

Dr. Robert G. Hayes, associate professor of chemistry, has been awarded a NATO Senior Postdoctoral to study at Oxford this summer. Dr. Hayes will leave July 1 for a two month stay at Oxford, where he will study with Dr. R.B.J. Williams, a specialist in porphyrins.

Dr. John H. Kennedy, professor of government and international studies and director of the Program of Latin American Studies, has been invited to prepare a section on the Catholic Church in Latin America for the Latin American Encyclopedia to be published by McGraw-Hill next year.

Dr. Kennedy also participated in the conference on Brazil's International Role in the Seventies sponsored by the Foreign Policy Research Institute in New York May 19-20. He presented the statement on Expectations of Other Latin American Nations Regarding Brazil.

<u>David T. Link</u>, associate dean of the Law School, was a speaker in the Economics and Management Conference of the American and Canadian Bar Associations June 2-4 in Toronto.

Dr. Cary K. Mak, associate professor of civil engineering, will present a paper entitled "Monte Carlo Simulation of the Nonlinear Response of Thin Arches with Random Imperfections" at the 1972 Summer Simulation Conference in San Diego, Calif.

"The Pentecostal Movement," a book by Rev. Edward D. O'Connor, C.S.C., associate professor of theology, has been chosen for a Catholic Press Association award in the paperback category. The book describes the growth of the Catholic Pentecostal movement and treats the theology behind it.

Prof. Christopher O. Osakwe, has resigned as assist-

ant professor of the Law School to accept a position on the law faculty at Tulane. He will also spend three summer sessions in post-doctoral study at Harvard. His associates at Notre Dame voted its commendation and appreciation to him.

Dr. Karamjit Rai, professor of biology, will spend six weeks in India this summer as an advisor to a World Health Organization (WHO) program. The team plans to use genetic methods to reduce local infestations of the yellow-fever mosquito.

Dr. David R. Sharpe, assistant professor in the Department of Aerospace and Mechanical Engineering, was invited to present a lecture at Purdue University on "Data Collection and Analysis in the Study of the Criminal Court Systems," on May 24.

Dr. Neil H. Schilmoeller, associate professor in the Department of Aerospace and Mechanical Engineering, has been invited to participate in a panel on "Technological Assessment Role of the Humanist" at the meeting of the American Society of Engineering Education in Lubbock, Tex. June 19-21.

Dr. Thomas G. Smith, assistant professor of chemical engineering, will present a paper entitled, "The Numerical Simulation and Design of a Homogeneous Non-Isothermal Multi-Pass Shell-and-Tube Reactor," at the ASME-AICHE National Heat Transfer Conference in Denver, Colo., August 6-9. Dr. J.T. Banchero, chairman of the chemical engineering department, is co-author of the paper.

Necrology

Rev. Joseph J. Corcoran, C.S.C., a former Notre Dame professor, died suddenly May 19 in South Bend where he was visiting friends while on leave from duties as chaplain at Mercy Hospital, New Orleans.

Fr. Corcoran served as chaplain at Saint Mary's College from 1946 to 1948, as assistant pastor at St. Patrick's Church, South Bend, from 1948 to 1956, and as pastor of the church from 1956 to 1960. After leaving St. Patrick's in 1960, he served for 10 years as assistant pastor of Sacred Heart Church, New Orleans, and the last two years as hospital chaplain.

events

Notre Dame Art Gallery

A selection of the more notable art pieces from the permanent collection will be on display during the summer months in the O'Shaughnessy Hall Art Gallery. Rev. Anthony J. Lauck, C.S.C., director of the Gallery, said both traditional and modern paintings will be exhibited in a style never before used at the University.

Italian and Flemish works will be highlighted in the area of traditional art objects and Dean A. Porter, curator, has selected a special group of both historical and contemporary drawings and watercolors to be shown in one area. These include several new acquisitions by the American cubist, the late Jean Xceron.

Another selection will be devoted to the savage sculpture of the African and Oceanic Islands. A number of objects and sculptures on a smaller scale, including a grouping of glass art, will be displayed in the south gallery during the summer months.

Weekday hours are 10 a.m. to 5 p.m., and Saturday and Sunday hours are 1 to 5 p.m.

Summer stage and film presentations

Three stage productions are planned this summer in Washington Hall by the Cooperative Department of Speech and Drama.

Reginald F. Bain, director of the Summer Theater, will direct the first production, Thornton Wilder's "The Skin of Our Teeth," on June 30 and July 1, 6, 7 and 8. "Summertree," the second production on July 14, 15, 20, 21 and 22, will be directed by Charles Ballinger, and John Guare's "The House of Blue Leaves" will be directed by Frederic Syburg on July 28 and 29 and August 3, 4 and 5.

All play performances begin at 8:30 p.m.

A series of 15 Academy Award winning movies will be

sponsored by the Communication Arts Film Series between June 29 and August 6. Each movie will be shown twice nightly in the Engineering Auditorium.

Music program

The Michiana Symphonette, in conjunction with the Summer Session, will present a musical program in Stepan Center July 5 at 8 p.m.

Rev. Patrick H. Maloney, C.S.C., associate professor of music, will appear as tenor soloist.

The program will be open to the public without charge.

office of advanced studies

Notes for Principal Investigators

Accounting Reports for Sponsored Programs for July, 1972

On July 1, 1972, the University will implement a redesigned and reprogrammed accounting system. The implementation of the revised accounting system necessitates the conversion of large amounts of data from old files to the new computer based files. Because of the volume of data to be converted and since some of the data will not be available for conversion until the University accounting for the fiscal year ending on June 30, 1972 is completed, principal investigators are hereby advised that it will be necessary to suspend printing of the monthly budget unit and fund reports for the month of July. The initial reports under the new system will be prepared at the end of August but will include all accounting activity since the first of July. For this interim period, principal investigators are requested to refer fiscal questions to their account monitors in the Accounting Office.

Information Circulars

Social Science Research Council Grants to Minority Scholars for Research on Racism and Other Social Factors in Mental Health

NO. FY72-74

The Social Science Research Council has announced a program of grants to enable scholars from minority groups to undertake research on relations between racism or other social factors and mental health. This program is made possible by a grant to the Council from the Maurice Falk Medical Fund. Research projects may focus upon social structures and processes or on adaptations of the individual. Factors contrib-

uting to mental health and mental illness in the individual and in the society may be examined, as well as all aspects of intervention for prevention, cure, and rehabilitation. Other appropriate topics for research include social organization for treatment of mental illness, or the mental health consequences of social action to resist isolation, estrangement, or oppression.

Eligible to apply are scholars from minority populations, especially American Indians, Blacks, Chicanos, and Puerto Ricans. Applicants should have earned the Ph.D. degree in a social or behavioral science. Special consideration will be given to imaginative research proposals submitted by younger scholars who have the Ph.D. degree and are just beginning research careers.

Awards ranging up to \$10,000 may provide for part-time maintenance in lieu of salary for up to 12 months, and modest amounts for clerical and technical assistance, travel, collection of data, and other research expenses. Requests for renewals will be entertained but will be reviewed in competition with all current applications.

Social and behavioral scientists interested in applying for support are invited to write to the Council describing briefly but explicitly the nature of the proposed research, the data to be used and the method of obtaining and analyzing them, and the significance of the research problem in respect to the field of racism and other social factors in mental health. In addition, the preliminary inquiry should include the applicant's age, occupation or current activity, and academic degrees held. These inquiries should be made as early as possible so that completed applications can be submitted to the Council by October 1. Awards will be announced in December and may be taken up any time in the following calendar year.

Address inquiries to:

Social Science Research Council Fellowships and Grants 230 Park Avenue New York, New York 10017

National Science Foundation Change in Due Date for In-Service Institutes for Secondary School Teachers

NO. FY72-75

On May 30, 1972 the National Science Foundation announced that the due date for proposals for 1973-74 In-service Institutes for Secondary School Teachers of Science and Mathematics has been set at July 27, 1972. Until recently, NSF estimated that the deadline would be November 1, 1972.

Current Publications and Other Scholarly Works

ARTS AND LETTERS HUMANISTIC AND SOCIAL STUDIES

American Studies

R. Weber. "A Pilgrim Reports from Hemingway's Michigan." Detroit Mag.,
Detroit Free Press 1971, August 22, 19-22.
R. Weber. "Review of L. Mumford's The Myth

of the Machine: The Pentagon of Power."
Rev. Politics 1972, 34, 106-107.
Weber. "Review of P. Slater's The Pur-

suit of Loneliness: American Culture at the Breaking Point. Rev. Politics 1971, 33, 425-427.

- T.S. Fern. Four constructions and form serigraphs. 1972. Gary Art Center, Gary, Indiana.
- T.S. Fern. One man show: 16 constructions and 6 serigraphs. 1971. South Bend Art Center, South Bend, Indiana.

 T.S. Fern. "Round and Square, XII." Three dimensional painting. 1972. 7th Biennial Michiana Regional Art Competition, South
- Bend Art Center, South Bend, Indiana. ·T.S. Fern. "Round and Square, XV." Three dimensional painting. 1972. 28th Annual Wabash Valley Exhibition. Sheldon Swope Art Gallery, Terre Haute, Indiana.

 T.S. Fern. "Round and Square, XX." Three dimensional painting. 1972. 29th Annual Exhibition, Northern Indiana Art Assocn.
- The Art Center, Hammond, Indiana.
 T.S. Fern. "Cycle VI." Serigraph. 1972
 The Anderson Winter Show of Watercolors 1972. and Prints. Anderson Fine Art Center,
- and Prints. Anderson Fine Art Center,
 Anderson, Indiana.

 T.S. Fern. "Round and Square, XVII." Three
 dimensional painting. 1971. St. Mary's
 College Art Gallery, Notre Dame, Indiana.

 D. Kinsey. "Fletcher." Painting. 1972.
 Exhibited at Annual Tri-Kappa Regional
 Anticts Exhibition Fort Wayne Museum of Artists Exhibition, Fort Wayne Museum of Art, Fort Wayne, Indiana.
- D. Kinsey. Group show: 1 etching and 2 paintings. 1971. Exhibited at South Bend

- Art Center, South Bend, Indiana.

 D. Kinsey. Group show: 2 paintings. 1971.
 Exhibited in Moreau Gallery, St. Mary's College, Notre Dame, Indiana.
- D. Kinsey. One man show: 8 paintings.

 1971. Exhibited at the Office of Advanced Studies, University of Notre Dame, Notre Dame, Indiana.
- D. Kinsey. One man show: 17 paintings. 1971. Exhibited in the Student Union,
- Valpariso University, Valparaiso, Indiana.
 R. Leader. "New Paintings." One man show:
 45 paintings. 1972. Exhibited at Art
 Gallery, University of Notre Dame, Notre Dame, Indiana.
- R. Leader. "Way of the Cross": 14 Graphite Drawings. 1971. Blessed Sacrament Chapel, Church of Saint Therese, Deephaven, Minnesota.
- R. Leader. Design and Execution of 14 Nave Stations of the Cross: Polychromed Walnut. 1971. Church of Saint Therese,
- Deephaven, Minnesota. R. Leader. Redesign of Facade Screen: Full Scale Cartoon for Leaded Antique Stained Glass. 1971. Church of Saint Olaf, Minneapolis, Minnesota.

 R. Leader. "Of Dead Cities and Living Gods." Rev. Politics. 1971, 33, 427-430.

 R. Stevens. 2 photographs on Univ. Notre Dame. Sat. Evening Post 1971, Fall,
- 38-39.
- "Manipulations and the Street." R. Stevens. 60 photographs. 1972. Exhibited at South Bend Art Center, South Bend, Indiana.
- R. Stevens. 4 photographs. 1971. Exhibited at St. Mary's College Art Gallery,
- Notre Dame, Indiana. R. Stevens. "Motorcycle Variation." 8 photographs. 1972. Exhibited at South Bend Art Center, South Bend, Indiana.

 R. Stevens. 3 photographs. 1971. Exhib-
- ited at Univ. Notre Dame Art Gallery, Notre Dame, Indiana.

Communication Arts

- E.A. Fischer. "Film as Insight." 1971, 208 pages. Fides Publishers, Notre Dame, Indiana.

- Indiana.

 E.A. Fischer. "Foreign Pensioners in Italy." Rome American 1972, 3, 1-3.

 E.A. Fischer. "Liturgie als Communicatie." in "Rond de Tafel." 1972, 16-31, Heeswijk-Dinther, Netherlands.

 E.A. Fischer. "Le Rituel comme Moyen de Communication." In "Questions Liturgique" (E. Moeller, Editor). 1971, 197-215, Univ. Louvain, Belgium.

Economics

- K. Brown. "Enrollment in Nonpublic Schools." In "Economic Problems of Non-public Schools." Off. Educ. Res. Report President's Comm. School Finance 1972, 155-210.
- D.J. Dugan. "The Gary Income Maintenance Experiment: Analytical Objections." Ann. Meeting Operations Res. Soc. Amer. 1972, 35 pages, New Orleans.

D.J. Dugan. "Income Maintenance Experiment: Encore or Finale in Experimentation Economics." 1972, April, 22 pages, Illinois St. Univ., Normal.

K.P. Jameson. "Dynamic X-Efficiency."

- Otrly. J. Econ. 1972, 86, 2, 313-326. K.S. Kim. "An Analysis of Economic Changes in Korea Under Japanese Colonial Rule. 1971, 16 pages. Internatl. Conf. Proc., Western Michigan Univ., Kalamazoo,
- Michigan. K.S. Kim. "Multiple Regressions Analysis of Urban Family-Expenditure Patterns in the Republic of Korea." Korean Economist

1971, 6, 84-85. K.S. Kim. "A Model of Growth and Trade in a Dual Economy." Amer. Economist 1971, 40, 154-155.

- W. Leahy. "Arbitration and Insubordination of Union Stewards." Arbitration J. <u>1972</u>,
- 27, 18-28.
 Leahy. "Landmark Cases Involving Union 1 1972, 51, W. Leahy. Representatives." Personnel J. 1972, 51, 241-245.
- S.H. Masters. "Wages and Plant Size: A Spillover Effect?" Indust. Labor Rela-tions Rev. <u>1971</u>, 25, 1, 124-126.

English

- D.P. Costello. "Tennessee Williams' Fugi-tive Kind." Modern Drama <u>1972</u>, May, 26-43.
- D.P. Costello. "The Language of The Catche in the Rye." In "Reading About Language" (C. Laird and R.M. Gorrell, Editors). "The Language of $\underline{\text{The}}$ Catcher 1971, 432-441. Harcourt Brace Jovanovich,

Inc., New York.

D Costello. "Pygmalion." In "Film and Film and Film Modia" (F.H. D.P. Costello. "Pygmalion." In "Film and Literature: Contrasts in Media" (F.H. Marcus, Editor). 1971, 228-242. Chandler

Publ. Co., Scranton.

- D.P. Costello. "The Language of <u>The Catcher</u> in the Rye." In "Style: Diagnoses and Prescriptions" (S. Malankey, Editor).
 1972, 184-194. Harcourt Brace Jovanovich,
- Inc., New York.

 R.J. Lordi. "Review of Ben Jonson: Se-lected Masques." 17th Cent. News 1971,
- 29, 71-72.

 R.J. Lordi. "Review of <u>Jacobean Tragedies</u>."

 17th Cent. News <u>1971</u>, <u>29</u>, <u>47</u>.

 J.E. Matthias. "And Then He Spoke of the
- Language Itself," a poem. Nation 1971, 503
- J.E. Matthias. "Alto Luogo Ayasuluk." Center <u>1972</u>, 3, 23-26.

General Program of Liberal Studies

M.J. Crowe. "Grassman." Encyclo. Amer. 1971, 13, 203.

Government and International Studies

- E.A. Goerner. "Epimetheus." In "Democracy in Crisis" (E.A. Goerner, Editor). 1971, 177-196. Univ. Notre Dame Press, Notre "Epimetheus." In "Democracy Dame, Indiana.
- E.A. Goerner, Editor. "Democracy in Crisis." <u>1971</u>, xv + 199 pages. Univ. Notre Dame Press, Notre Dame, Indiana.

J. Lyon. "The Immediate Reaction to Darwin." Church Hist. <u>1972</u>, 41, 1, 78-93.

History

P.C. Bartholomew. "Supreme Court of the United States." 1972 Compton Yearbook,

Encyclopedia Britannica, 455-457. L.L. Bernard. "Review of E.N. Williams, The Ancient Regime in Europe and J.B. Bromley, ed., The Rise of Great Britain and Russia, 1688-1725." Rev. Politics <u>1971, 33, 454-456.</u>

"New York L.J. Bradley and W.I. Davisson. Maritime Trade: Ship Voyage Patterns, 1715-1765." New York Hist. Soc. Qtrly. 1971, 55, 309-317.

A H. Chroust. "Late Hellenistic <u>Textbook</u> Definitions of Philosophy." Laval Theol.
Philos. (Canada) 1972, 28, 15-25.
A H. Chroust. "The Philosophy of Law of Epicurus and the Epicureans." Amer. J.

Jurisprud. <u>1971</u>, 16, 36-83. J.P. Dolan. "American Priests and a

Teilhardian Maxim." Commonweal 1972, 96, 40 - 41.

Kritzek. "Jerusalem and the Holy Place: A Christian Viewpoint." Christ. Century J. Kritzek.

1971, 88, 41, 1205-1210. J. Kritzek. "Themes of Islamic Civiliza-tion." Middle East J. 1972, 26, 1, 88-89.

- B. Pike. "Making the Hispanic World Safe from Democracy: Spanish Liberals and Hispanismo." Rev. Politics 1971, 33, 3, F.B. Pike. 307-322.
- F.B. Pike. "Hispanismo and the Non-Revolutionary Spanish Immigrant in Spanish America, 1900-1930." Internatl. Amer. Econ. Affairs 1971, 25, 2, 3-30.

F.B. Pike. "Peru Since Independence." In "Latin America: A Guide to the Historical Literature" (C. Griffin, Editor) 1971, 497-512, Univ. Texas Press, Austin, Texas.

F.B. Pike. "Hispanismo, 1898-1936: Conservatives and Liberals and their Relations with Spanish America." 1971, 486 pages. Univ. Notre Dame, Notre Dame, Indiana.

M. Smelser. "First Stringers, Journeymen, Strangers, Ambulances, Life Guards." Baseball Res. J. Annual Hist. Statist. Rev., Soc. Amer. Baseball Res. 1972, 1, 44-49.

Modern and Classical Languages

R.J. Klawiter. "Ulrich von Hutten: To Be Comic or not to Be Comic - Is that the Question?" Moreana Bull. Thomas More 1972, 33, 15-22. R.J. Klawiter. "Intellectual History

(Geistesgeschichte): The New Relationship to Nature." In "Modern Perspectives in Western Art History" (W.E. Kleinbauer, Editor). 1971, 397-412. Holt, Rinehart,

and Winston, New York. A. Rubulis. "Translation of Boris Pasternak's poem <u>Hamlet</u>." Aglonas Vestnesis <u>1972</u>, <u>5/93</u>, 10. A. Rubulis. "The Twelfth Death Anniversary

of Boris Pasternak." Aglonas Vestnesis

Music

R.F. O'Brien. "Notre Dame: America's First College Band." Music J. 1971, 29, 24-25.

Philosophy

- J.W. Evans, Editor. "The New Scholasti-cism." (In Honor of Jacques Maritain on the Occasion of his 90th Birthday). 1972,
- W. Evans. "Jacques Maritain." New Scholasticism 1972, 46, 2-9. J.W. Evans.
- J.W. Evans. "A Maritain Bibliography."
- Scholasticism 1972, 46, 118-128.
 G. Gutting. "Rejoinder to Fr. Felt."
 Process Studies 1971, 1, 181-182.
 G. Gutting. "Metaphysics and Induction."
- Process Studies <u>1971</u>, 1, 171-178. G. Gutting. "Husserl and Logical Empiri-
- cism." Metaphilos. 1971, 2, 197-226.

 R. McInerny. "No Date Has Been Set." Short story. Redbook 1972, May, 72-3, 124-128.

 R. McInerny. "A Clerical Collage." Common-
- weal <u>1972</u>, 95, 21, 494-499. McInerny. "The Houses of Burgess." Com-R. McInerny.
- monweal 1972, 94, 12, 290-291.
 R. McInerny. "The Authority of Failure."
- Commonweal <u>1972</u>, 92, 16, 399-400. McInerny. "The Greene-ing of America." R. McInerny.
- Commonweal 1972, 95, 3, 59-61.

 McInerny. "Tense in the Present." Notre R. McInerny.
- R. McInerny.

 Dame Mag. 1972, Feb., 12-14.

 R. McInerny. "The American Heresy." Worldview 1972, 15, 5, 42-46.

 E. McMullin, Rev. "Estimating the Probabilities of Extraterrestrial Life." Solar System Studies 1971, 14, 291-294.
- B. Pahi. "A Note on Full Models of Propositional Calculi." (abstract) J. Symbolic
- Logic 1971, 36, 363. M. Sayre. "Review of R.E. Allen's <u>Plato's</u> 'Euthyphro' and the Earlier Theory of Forms." Philos. Qtrly. 1972, 22, 87, 165-166. K.M. Sayre.

Psychology

- D.C. Anderson, with L. Jensen and K. Harris. "Retention Following a Change in Ambiens Contextual Stimuli for Six Age Groups."

 Developmental Psychol. 1971, 4, 394-399.

 D.C. Anderson, with L. Jensen and J. Dibble.
- "The Effects of a Contextual Change upon Retroactive Inhibition." Psychol. Reports 1971, 29, 39-46.
- D.C. Anderson, with L. Jensen and A. Williams. "Proactive Inhibition and Contextual Change as Determinants of the Formation and Retention of an Attitude. Res. in Educ., ERIC Clearing house on Tests Measurements and Evaluations 1972, 17 pages.
- D.C. Anderson, with J. Madden, IV, J. Rollins, R. Connor, and S. Levine.
 "Preshock-Produced Intensification of Passive Avoidance Responding and of Elevation in Corticosteroid Level." Psysiol. Behavior 1971, 7, 733-736.

"The Con-D.C. Anderson and T.L. Whitman. Theory and trol of Behavior through Law: Theory a Practice." Notre Dame Lawyer 1972, 47, 815-852.

Sociology and Anthropology

- R.A. Kurtz, with H.P. Chalfant. "Alcoholics and the Sick Role: Assessments by Social Workers." J. Health Soc. Behavior 1971, 12, 66-72.
- R.A. Kurtz and W. Wolfensberger. "Meas ment of Parents' Perceptions of their Retarded Children's Development." Ge "Measure-
- Psychol. Monographs 1971, 83, 3-92.

 J. Rubel. "Review of R. Vasquez'
 Chicano." Internatl. Migration Rev. 1972, A.J. Rubel. 6, 88-89.

Speech and Drama

- R.F. Bain. Direction of "M. Rehak's 'Judas Christ'." Play. <u>1972</u>. Presented at Washington Hall, University of Notre Dame, Notre Dame, Indiana.
- R.F. Bain. Direction of "T. Wilder's 'The Skin of Our Teeth'." Play. 1972. Presented at Washington Hall, University of
- Notre Dame, Notre Dame, Indiana.

 R. Kenvin. Direction of "O. Hammerstein II and J. Kern's 'Show Boat'." Play. 1972.

 Presented at O'Laughlin Auditorium, St. Mary's College, Notre Dame, Indiana.
- R. Kenvin. Direction of "D. Westheimer's 'My Sweet Charlie'." Play. 1971. Presented at Little Theatre, St. Mary's College, Notre Dame, Indiana.
- F.W. Syburg. Direction of "J. Webster's 'The Duchess of Malfi'." Play. 1971. Presented at O'Laughlin Theatre, St. Mary's College, Notre Dame, Indiana.

Theology

- L.J. Biallis. "Searching for It." Theology Today 1971, 7, 157-169.
- J.T. Burtchaell, C.S.C. "'Human Life' and Human Love." In "Moral Issues and Christian Response" (P.T. Jersild and D.A.
- Johnson, Editors) 1971, 139-147. Holt, Rinehart, and Winston, Inc., New York. J.T. Burtchael, C.S.C. "Notre Dame: How Catholic Is It?" Insight 1971, Summer, 5-17.
- J.T. Burtchaell, C.S.C. "Notre Dame: How Catholic Is It?" St. Anthony Messenger 1972, Jan., 8-13.
- J.T. Burtchaell, C.S.C. "Notre Dame: How Catholic Is It?" The Criterion 1971, 17, 5, Indianapolis, Indiana.

 E.S. Fiorenza. "Die tausendjaehrige
- Herrschaft der Auferstandenen." Bibel Leben <u>1972</u>, 13, Heft 2. S. Fiorenza. "Priester fuer Gott.
- E.S. Fiorenza. Studien zum Herrschafts-und Priester-motiv in der Apokalypse." 1972, viii + 450 pages. Verlag Aschendorff, Muenster.

 S. Hauerwas. "The Meaning of Being Human." Notre Dame Mag. 1972, 1, 1, 26-27.

 S. Hauerwas. "Abortion and Normative

- Ethics." Cross Currents 1971, 21, 4, 399-
- S. Hauerwas. "Issues in Ethics: A Review of J. Gustafson's, Christian Ethics and the Community." Reflection 1972, 69, 3, 9-14.

S. Hauerwas. "Situation Ethics, Moral Notions, and Moral Theology." Irish

Theol. Ortly. 1971, July, 242-257.
Hauerwas. "Democracy as the Quest for Legitimate Authority: A Review of Berger and Neuhaus, Movement and Revolution and S. Hauerwas. R. Dahl, After the Revolution." Rev. Politics, 1972, 34, 1, 117-124.

A. Kavanagh. "Liturgy and Prayer." Natl.

Cath. Reporter 1972, Jan., 28, 5. L.L. Mitchell. "The Anglican Ordinal.

Living Church 1972, 164, 20, 15-16. J.A. O'Brien, Rev. "Crisis in the Catholic Church." Christian Century 1971, Oct., 1233-1234.

J.A. O'Brien, Rev. "Mary: Inspirer of Art." Our Lady's Digest 1971, Nov.-Dec., 130-132.

J.A. O'Brien, Rev. "One Mediator between God and Men." Our Lady's Digest 1972,

Mar.-Apr., 208-211.

J.A. O'Brien, Rev. "Sacraments: Visits with Christ." Pastoral Life 1972, 21, 4,

J.A. O'Brien, Rev. "Should Prizefighting Be Outlawed?" Pastoral Life 1971, 20, 7, Pastoral Life 1971, 20, 7, 13-17.

J.A. O'Brien, Rev. "The Healing Power of Love." Osteopathic Physician. 1971,

Dec., 19-25. J.A. O'Brien, Rev. "What Has Happened to Convert Work?" Pastoral Life 1971, 20, 11, 28-30.

BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

Finance and Business Economics

R.P. Kent. "Money and Banking." Sixth edition 1972, xvi + 622 pages. Holt, Rinehart, and Winston, Inc., New York.

Marketing Management

- Y. Furuhashi. "New Policy Toward Foreign Investment?" MSU Bus-Topics 1972, 20, 2, 33-38.
- J.A. Weber. "Keeping Up-to-Date on Current Developments in Business." J. Bus. <u>1972</u>, May, 46-48.
- J.A. Weber. "Economic Journals: Policies, Trends, and Problems." Southern Econ. J. 1972, 37, 4, 559-565.

EDUCATION

P.G. Banikiotes. "A More Relevant Approach to Mental Health Services: A Review of Caplan's Theory and Practice of Mental Health Consultation." Notre Dame J. Educ. 19<u>71</u>, 2, 183-185.

P.G. Banikiotes, with F.G. Banikiotes and A.A. Montgomery. "Auditory Reinforcement of Infant Vocalizations." Proc. 79th

Annual Convention Amer. Psychol. Assocn. 1971, 135-136.

P.G. Banikiotes and S.P. McCabe. "A Sopho-more Vocational Counseling and Testing Program." Coll. Student Personnel 1972,

13, 273.
P.G. Banikiotes and S.P. McCabe. "Facilitating Vocational Planning." Natl. Assocn. Women Deans Counselors 1972, 35, 133-135.

P.G. Banikiotes and S.P. McCabe. "Interest and Personality Measurement: Relationship between Self-Directed Search and Eysenck Personality Inventory Scores." Psychol. Reports <u>1972</u>, 30, 158.

P.G. Banikiotes, J.M. Russell, and J.D. Linden. "Interpersonal Attraction Methodology: Oversimplified or Related to Real Interaction?" Proc. 79th Annual Conven-

tion Amer. Psychol. Assocn. 1971, 279-280. J.O. Meany. "Communication and Conjugal Spirituality." In "Marital Therapy, Moral, Sociological, and Psychological Factors" (H.L. Silverman, Editor). 1972, 299-309. Charles C. Thomas Publ., Springfield, Illinois.

J.O. Meany. "Mind Blowing." Cross Currents <u>1971</u>, 21, 468-469.

ENGINEERING

Aerospace and Mechanical Engineering

T. Ariman, with R.E. Hoffman. "Thermal and Mechanical Stresses in Nuclear Reactor Vessels." In "Proc. 1st Internat1. Conf.

Structural Mech. Reactor Technol." (T.A. Jaeger, Editor) 1971, G 1/2, 1-51.

T. Ariman with B. Sureshwara and L.H.N. Lee.
"Impulsive Loading of Rectangular Plates with Finite Deformation." Proc. 6th Southeastern Conf. Theoretical Appl. Mech. 1972, 128-143.

T. Ariman, with M.A. Turk and N.D. Sylvester. "An Analysis of Blood Flow." Proc. 6th Southeastern Conf. Theoretical

Appl. Mech. 1972, 68-82. H. Atassi. "Aerodynamic Forces Acting upon a Body in Flight in a Nearly Free-Molecule Flow." Bull. Amer. Phys. Soc. <u>1971</u>, 16, 1334.

W.E. Biles. "A Simulation Study of Delay Mechanisms in Criminal Courts." 41st Natl. Meeting Operations Res. Soc. Amer. 1972, SFP3.17, New Orleans.

R.M. Brach. "Friction and the Mechanics of Skidding Automobiles." Highway Res. Board, Natl. Res. Council 1972, June, Record 376.
R.M. Brach. "Optimized Design: Character-

istics Vibration Shapes and Resonators."

J: Acoustical Soc. Amer. 1972, 51, 5, 2. J.R. Lloyd, with G.S. Beavers and E.M. Sparrow. "Low Reynolds Number Turbulent Flow in Large Aspect Ratio Rectangular Ducts." Trans. ASME, J. Basic Engr. 1971, June, 296-299.

J.R. Lloyd, E.M. Sparrow, and E.R.G. Eckert. "Local Natural Convection Mass Transfer Measurements." J. Electrochem. Soc. 1972, 119, 6, 702-707.

E.E. Morris, with A.B. Chilton. "Gamma-Ray Penetration Correction Factors." Trans.

Amer. Nuclear Soc. 1971, 14, 889.

E. E. Morris, with D.W. Green, K. Preiss, and A.B. Chilton. "Gamma-Ray Penetration of Ribbed Slabs." Trans. Amer. Nuclear Soc. <u>1971</u>, 14, 888-889.

T.J. Mueller, with C.R. Hall, Jr. "Exploratory Analysis of Non-uniform Plug Nozzle Flow Fields." J. Spacecraft Rockets <u>1972</u>, 9, 5, 292-297.

V.W. Nee, with W.G. Meyers and A.A. Szewczyk. "Boundary Layer Control of Liquid - Gas Flow." Bull. Amer. Phys.

Soc. 1971, 16, 1318.

V.W. Nee, S. Rao, and K.T. Yang. "Mass Diffusion from a Line Source in Neutral and Stratified Surface Layers." Bull. Amer.

Phys. Soc. 1971, 16, 1318-1319.

J.L. Novotny, with J.C. Bratis. "Radiation-Convection Interaction in Real Gases."

Amer. Inst. Aeronaut. Astronaut. 1971, 72-278, San Antonio, Texas.

J.L. Novotny and J.C. Bratis. "Radiative Transfer in Liquid CC14." J. Quant. Spectrosc. Radiat. Transfer 1972, 12, 901-911.

D. Sharpe, J.J. Uhran, M.K. Sain, and E.W. Henry. "Computer Model of the Felony Delay Problem." IEEE Internatl. Conven-

Delay Problem." IEEE Internati. Convention Digest 1972, 310-311, New York.
K.T. Yang, J.L. Novotny, and Y. Cheng.
"Laminar Free Convection from Nonisothermal Plate Immersed in a Temperature Stratified Medium." 1972, Internat1. J. Heat Mass Transfer 1972, 15, 1097-1109.

Architecture

B.J. Crumlish, with J. Farago. "Centre du Plateau Beauborg." National Center for the Contemporary Arts. 1971, Paris City Council, Paris, France.

B.J. Crumlish and D.E. Sporleder. "Centro

Direzionale di Fontivegge." Design Development of Office, Residential, and Commercial Area. 1971, Comune di Perugia, Perugia, Italy.

B.J. Crumlish and D.E. Sporleder. "Ox Bow Park Warming House." 1971, Elkhart County Park and Recreation Board, Elkhart County, Indiana.

Chemical Engineering

- J.P. Kohn, A.A. Susu, and J.V. Ribeiro.
 "Heterogeneous Phase Equilibrium in the Ethylene-n-Dodecane System." J. Chem. Eng. Data <u>1972</u>, 17, 253-255.
- K.D. Luks, I.B. Schrodt, and J.S. Ku. "A Comparative Analysis of the Rice Allnatt and Square - Well Liquid Transport Theo-Phys. Chem. Liquids 1971, 2, 147-
- K.D. Luks, P.Y. Tan, and J.J. Kozak. "Application of Conformal Solution Theory to Gas Gas Equilibria." J. Chem. Phys. 1971, 55, 1012-1015.

Civil Engineering

D.J. Fielding, W.F. Chen, and L.S. Beedle. "Frame Analysis and Connection Shear Deformation." Fritz Engr. Lab. Report 1972, 333.16, Lehigh Univ., Bethlehem, Pennsylvania.

K.R. Lauer. "The Effects of Boundary Conditions on the Air Void System of Air Entrained Concrete." Res. Conf. - 50 yrs. Bldg. Res. Inst. 1971, 76-81, Prague, Czechoslovakia.

C.K. Mak. "Monte Carlo Simulation of the Nonlinear Response of Structures with Random Imperfections." Proc. 1972 Summer

Simul. Conf. 1972, 356-362. C.K. Mak and D.W. Kao. "Finite Element Analysis of Buckling and Post-buckling Be-Analysis of Buckling and Post-buckling Behavior of Arches with Geometric Imperfections." Internatl. J. Computer Structures 1972, 2, 45-57.

P.C. Singer. "Anaerobic Control of Phosphate by Ferrous Iron." J. Water. Poll. Control Fed. 1972, 44, 663-669.

M.W. Tenney. "Fly Ash Can have Potential Applications in the Postoration of Pol-

Applications in the Restoration of Polluted Lakes." Aware 1972, 19, 6-7.
M.W. Tenney and G.J. Budzin. "How Good is Your Mixing?" Water Wastes Eng. 1972, 9,

5, 57-59.
M.W. Tenney, W.F. Echelberger, Jr., and T.E. Higgins. "Water Pollution. Effects on Arms Literature Review." Surface Waters; Annual Literature Review."
J. Water Poll. Cont. Fed. 1971, 43, 1243-1254.

Electrical Engineering

W.B. Berry and L.L. Kazmerski. "Experimen-tal Determination of Stacking Fault potential in Cd S Thin Films." J. Electrochem.

Soc. <u>1971</u>, 118, 292C. .W.J. Gajda, Jr. "X-Ray Topography and Device Performance." Proc. IEEE Fall

Electronics Conf. 1971, 163-169.
W.J. Gajda, Jr., with G.T. Welch. "A RealTime Holographic Determination of Changes
in Semiconductor Wafer Thickness." Proc.

IEEE Fall Electronics Conf. 1971, 170-171. E.W. Henry. "Academic Uses of Computers at the University of Notre Dame." Analog Hybrid Computer Educ. Soc. Newsletter

1971, VI-5, 1-3. E.W. Henry. "A Quasi-Optimal Nonlinear Controller for Steerable Structures." Proc. 5th Hawaii Intnatl. Conf. System Sci. 1972, 267-269, Honolulu, Hawaii.

E.W. Henry. "Computer Routines for On-Line Digital." 1971, v + 102 pages. NASA Goddard Space Flight Center, Greenbelt, Maryland.

E.W. Henry. Review of Y. Chu's "Digital Simulation of Continuous Systems." Tr

IEEE. 1971, AC-16, 215-216.

E.W. Henry, J.J. Uhran, Jr., and M.K. Sain.
"Interactive Computer Simulation of Court System Delays." Proc. 3rd Annual
Pittsburgh Conf. Modeling Simulation 1972,

- R.J. Leake, with W.A. Gruver III. "Review of Melsa's and Schultz's Linear Control Systems." Trans. IEEE 1972, AC-17, 188-
- R.J. Leake, with H.J. Weaver. "Stability Domain Design of Autonomous Discrete-Time Systems." Trans. IEEE <u>1972</u>, AC-17, 111-
- "Review of C.A. Desoer's Notes for R. Liu.
- a Second Course on Linear Systems." IEEE Trans. Automatic Control 1972, 279-280.

 J.L. Massey. "Review of S. Lin's An Introduction to Error-Correcting Codes."

 Trans. IEEE 1971; IT-17, G, 768-769.

 B.R. Myers. "Advanced Problem 5795: Span-
- ning Trees in a Wheel." Amer. Math.
 Monthly 1971, 78, 5, 548.
 R. Myers. "Review of D. Mayer's Electric
- B.R. Myers. Network Analysis by the Generalized Cut-set Matrix Method." Math. Rev. 1972, 43, 4, 1085. B.R. Myers.
- "Review of A. Valachi's <u>Utilisation</u> <u>des Fonctions Complementaires</u> dans la Synthese Simultanee des Fonctions
 Logiques Quadratiques." Math. Rev. 1972,
 43, 4, 1087.

 J.J. Nahas and R.J. Schwartz. "Modes of
 Control in a Three-Terminal Voltage-
- Tunable Gunn Effect Device." Proc. IEEE Fall Electronics Conf. 1971, 172-174.
 R. Saeks. "Generalized Networks." 1972,
- xi + 433 pages. Holt, Rinehart, and
- Winston, New York. Saeks. "Resolution Space A Function R. Saeks. Analytic Approach to Control Theory." Proc. 9th Allerton Conf. Circuit Sys.
- Theory 1971, Univ. of Illinois, 290-297.
 Saeks and C.R. Souza. "On Asymptotic System Theory - An Approach to SomeLarge Scale Systems." Proc. 9th Allerton Conf. Circuit Sys. Theory 1971, Univ. of Illinois, 180-181.
- R. Saeks and L. Winslow. "Lossless Non-linear Networks." Proc. Internatl. Symp.
- Circuit Theory 1972, 242-244.

 R. Saeks and L. Winslow. "On Redundancy in Filter Design." Proc. 15th Midwest Symp. Circuit Theory 1972, Univ. of Missouri, Paper XI-5.
- J.J. Uhran, Jr. and L.K. Mackechnie. Fast Set-up Automatic-Adaptive Equalizer." Proc. Fall Electronics Conf. 1971, 469-471, Chicago.
- J.J. Uhran, Jr., with P. Monsen. "The Effect of Airplane Doppler Shift on an Adaptive Tropscatter Data Receiver." Proc. Internatl. Conf. Communications
- 1971, 26, 25-30, Montreal. J.J. Uhran, Jr. with G.C. Ranieri. "Linear and Nonlinear Digital Processing." Proc. Internatl. Telemetry Conf. 1971, 64-72, Washington, D.C.
- J.J. Uhran, Jr., M.K. Sain, E.W. Henry, and D. Sharpe. "Computer Model of the Felony Delay Problem." IEEE Internatl. Convention Digest 1972, 310-311, New York.

Metallurgical Engineering

C.W. Allen, with P. DeLavignette and S. Amelincky. "Electron Microscopic Studies of the Laves Phases Ti Cr₂ and Ti Co₂.

- Phys. Stat. Sol. 1972, 9, 237-246. C.W. Allen, G.C. Kuczynski, and K.R. Iyer. "Effect of Light on the Mobility of Dislocations in Germanium." J. Appl. Phys. 1972, 43, 1337-1341.
- B.D. Cullity. "Introduction to Magn Materials." <u>1972</u>, xx + 666 pages. Addison-Wesley Publ. Co., Reading, "Introduction to Magnetic Massachusetts.
- B.D. Cullity, with M.E. Kuruzar. Magnetostriction of Iron under Tensile and Compressive Stress." Internatl. J. Magnetism 1971, 1, 323-325.

 N.F. Fiore and H. Akita. "Cell-Wall Dis-
- location Damping in Single Crystal Cu." J. Appl. Phys. 1971, 42, 2203-2208.

SCIENCE

Biology

- H.A. Bender. "Is There Intelligent Life on Planet Earth?" Notre Dame Mag. 1972, Feb., 23-26.
- T.P. Bonner and P.P. Weinstein, with R.I. Bolla. "Genic Control of the Postembryonic Development of <u>Nippostrongylus</u> brasiliensis." Comp. Biochem. Physiol Comp. Biochem. Physiol. 1972, 41B, 801-813.
- J.D. Cassidy, P.H. LaMarche, and C.F. Starmer. "Analyse des Cancers de L'enfance dans Deux Regions Geographiques des Etats-Unis." Proc. 4th Congress Internatl. Genetique Humaine. (Excerpta Medica.) <u>1971</u>, 233, 42-43. .J. Crovello. "The Fourth Annual Numerical
- T.J. Crovello. Taxonomy Conference." Systematic Zool.
- 1971, 20, 233-238. T.J. Crovello. "The Theory and Practice of Classification in Diverse Disciplines."
- Biosci. 1971, 21, 196.
 T.J. Crovello, with W.W. Moss. "A Bibliography on Classification in Diverse Disciplines." Bull. Classific. Soc. 1971, 2,
- R.D. Goodfellow and G.C.K. Liu. "Squalene Metabolism in the Larva of <u>Sarcophage</u> <u>bullata</u> (Diptera)." J. Insect Physiol. 1972, 18, 95-103.
- T.L. Poulson, with H.C. Heller. "Altitudinal Zonation of Chipmunks (Eutamias): Adaptations to Aridity and High Temperature." Amer. Midland Naturalist 1972, 87, 296-313.
- T.L. Poulson and W.B. White. "Review of Biogeography of Troglobites. Bull. Natl. Speleol. Soc. 1971; 33, 119-122.

 K.S. Rai. "Recent Advances in Cytogenetic
- Studies of the Mosquito, Aedes aegypti." Proc. 13th Internat1. Cong. Etomol. 1971, 1, 348, Moscow.
- K.S. Rai, with N. Lorimer, and E. Hallinan. "Translocation Homozygotes in the Yellow Fever Mosquito, Aedes aegypti." World Health Organiz. 1972, VBC/72, 355, 1-18. F.E. Schwalm, R. Simpson, and H.A. Bender.
- "Early Development of the Kelp Fly,

 <u>Coelopa frigida</u>, Ultrastructural Changes
 within Polar Granules." Roux's Archiv. 1971, 166, 205-218.

- R.E. Thorson, with J.C. Kowalski. "Protective Immunity against Tetrathyridia of Mesocestoides corti by Passive Transfer of Serum in Mice." J. Parasitol., 1972, 58, 2, 244-246.
- M. Trpis, W.K. Hartberg, C. Teesdale, and G.A.H. McClelland. "Aedes aegypti and Aedes simpsoni Breeding in Coral Rock Holes on the Coast of Tanzania." Bull. World Health Organ. 1971, 45, 529-531.
- M. Trpis, with L. Jedlicka. "Notes of tribution of Black Flies (Diptera: "Notes on Dis-<u>Simuliidae</u>) in East Slovakia." Ac. Rev. Natur. Mus. Nat. Slov., Bratislava <u>1972</u>, 18, 97-104.
- "A Contribution Trpis, with I. Orszagh. to the Knowledge of Little Known Species of Genus Culicoides Latreille (Diptera: Ceratopogonidae) from Czechoslovakia. Ac. Rev. Natur. Mus. Nat. Slov., Bratislava 1971, 17, 33-43. M. Trpis, and I. Orszagh. "Notes on the

Distribution of Biting Midges (Diptera: <u>Ceratopogonidae</u>) in East Slovakia as Indicated by Light Traps." Ac. Rev. Natur. Mus. Nat. Slov., Bratislava 1972, 18, 239-246.

P.P. Weinstein. "The Fifth Annual Report of the United States-Japan Cooperative Medical Science Program." Annual Report of Panel on Parasitic Diseases, 92nd Congress, 2nd Session, House of Repr. 1972, 92-189,6.

Chemistry

- S. Basu, with M. Basu. "Enzymatic Synthesis of Rabbit Erythrocyte Pentaglycosylceramide. Federation Proc. 1972, 31, 437.
- S. Basu, A. Schultz, M. Basu, and S. Roseman. "-Enzymatic Synthesis of Galactocerebroside by a Galactosyltrans-ferase from Embryonic Chicken Brain." J Biol. Chem. <u>1971</u>, 246, 4272-4279. *G. Beck and J.K. Thomas. "Two Photon Laser

Photo-Ionisation of Molecules in Liquids."

- Chem. Letters 1972, 13, 3, 1, 295-297.

 *G. Binsch, with A. Steigel, J. Sauer, and D.A. Kleier. "Nitrogen Analogs of Cycloheptatrienes and Norcavadienes. A Nuclear Magnetic Resonance Study of Their Thermo-dynamic and Kinetic Properties." J. Amer J. Amer.
- Chem. Soc. 1972, 94, 2770-2779.
 R.S. Bottei. "Review of Hatfield and Palmer's Problems in Structural Inorganic Chemistry." J. Chem. Educ. 1972, 49, A182, 186.
- R.K. Bretthauer, S. Basu, and S. Wu. "Synthesis of Glucosylceramide from Yeast (Hansenula holstii)." Federation Proc.
- 1972, 31, 843.

 M. Burton. "The Immorality of Ignorance."

 Chem. Eng. News 1971, 49, 40, 1.

 F.J. Castellino, with K.H. Dooley. "Solubility of Amino Acids in Aqueous Guanidinium Thiocyanate Solutions." Bio-
- Chem. 1972, 11, 1870-1875. G.F. D'Alelio, E.T. Hofman, and W.F. Strazik. "Chelating Polymers. III. Monomeric N- Hydroxyaminoacetic Acids as

- Chelating Agents." J. Macromol. Sci.-Chem. 1972, A6(3), 55-96.

 G.F. D'Alelio, E.T. Hofman, and W.F. Strazik. "Chelating Polymers. V. Amino-acetic Acid Polymers Derived from Polygly-cidyl Methacrylate." J. Macromol. Sci.-
- Chem. 1972, A6(3), 513-567.

 J.P. Danehy and V.J. Elia. "The Determination of Sulfinic Acids in the Presence of Thiols by Titration with Aqueous Sodium Nitrite." Anal. Chem. 1972, 44, 1281-1284.
- E.L. Eliel, with R.J. Abraham, H.D. Banks, O. Hofer, and M.K. Kaloustian. "Confor-mational Analysis. XXV. Conformational Equilibria in 5-Heterosubstituted 1, 3-Dioxanes. Comparison of Calculated and Experimental Solvent Effects." J. Amer. Chem. Soc. 1972, 94, 1913-1918.
- E.L. Eliel, Ed., with S.H. Wilen. "Tables of Resolving Agents and Optical Resolu-"Tables tions." <u>1972</u> 312 pp. Univ. Notre Dame
- Press, Notre Dame, Indiana. T.P. Fehlner, with S.A. Fridmann. actions of Borane (BH3). V. Mass Spectrometric Observation of the Products of Addition to Diborane (6) and Pentaborane (9)." Inorg. Chem. 1972, 11, 936-940.
 Funabashi, with Y. Maruyama. "Electron"
- Drift Mobility in Solid 3-Methylpentane."
 J. Chem. Phys. 1972, 56, 5, 2342-2345.
 W.H. Hamill. "Single Ion Transitions in
- Ionic Diatomic Molecules." J. Chem. Phys. 1972, 56, 4191-4194
- W.H. Hamill, with K. Hiraoka. "Energy Losses of Slow Electrons in Alkali Halide Films." J. Chem. Phys. 1972, 56, 3185-J. Chem. Phys. 1972, 56, 3185-
- W.H. Hamill, with S. Khorana and P.B. Merkel. "Electronic Processes in Ultraviolet and Pulse-Irradiated Halide Ion Systems. The Effect of Heavy Atoms." J Chem. Phys. 1972, 56, 2807-2813. W.H. Hamill with T. Matsushige. "Chemical
- Effects Due to Low-Energy Electron Impact on Thin Films of Cyclohexane and n-Hexane at 77°K." J. Phys. Chem. 1972, 76, 1255-1259.
- R.G. Hayes, with N. Edelstein. "X-ray Photoelectron Spectroscopy of the Fluorine K Level in Simple Fluoride Compounds." "Electron Spectroscopy" (D. Shirley Editor). 1972, 771-778. North-Holland Publ. Co., Amsterdam.
 R. Hentz. "Search for the Earliest Proc-
- *R.R. Hentz. esses." In "Proceedings of the International Meeting on Primary Radiation Effects in Chemistry and Biology" (M.B.A. Crespi and M.A. Molinari, Editors). <u>1971</u>, 147-165. Comisión Natl. Energiá Atomica, Buenos Aires, Argentina.
- *R.R. Hentz, Farhataziz, and E.M. Hansen.
 "Pulse Radiolysis of Liquids at High Pressures. II. Diffusion-Controlled Reactions of the Hydrated Electron." J. Chem. Phys. 1972, 56, 4485-4488.

 *J-T.J. Huang. "Analytical Self-Consistent-
- Field Energy Expression for Ground-State J. Chem. Phys. <u>1972</u>, 56, 6, $H_3 + Ion."$ 3176-3177.
- *J.L. Magee and A.B. Taylor. "Recombination

of Ions in a Coulomb Field in the Presence of a Scavenger." J. Chem. Phys. 1972, 56, 6, 3061-3066.

M. Martinez-Carrion, with W. Critz and J. Quashnock. "Molecular Weight and Subunits of Serine Transhydroxymethylase." Bio-

chem. <u>1972</u>, 11, 1613-1615.

M. Martinez-Carrion, with S. Shrawder. "Evidence of Phenylalanine Transaminase Activity in the Isoenzymes of Aspartate Transaminase." J. Biol. Chem. 1972, 24 J. Biol. Chem. 1972, 247, 2486-2492.

W.R. Scheidt, D.M. Collins, and J.L. Hoard. "Stereochemistry of Dioxovanadium (V) Complexes II. The Crystal and Molecular Structure of Ammonium (Dihydrogenethylenediaminetetraacetato)-dioxovanadate (V) Trihydrate." J. Amer. Chem. Soc. <u>1971</u>,

93, 3873-3877.
R. Scheidt, R. Countryman, and J.L. Hoard.
"Stereochemistry of Dioxovanadium (V)
Complexes III. The Crystal and Molecular Structure of Trisodium (Ethylenediaminetetraacetato) dioxovanadate (V) Tetra-hydrate." J. Amer. Chem. Soc. <u>1971</u>, 93, 3878-3882.

W.R. Scheidt, C.-C. Tsai, and J.L. Hoard. "Stereochemistry of Dioxovanadium (V) Complexes I. The Crystal and Molecular Structure of Triammonium Bis (oxalato) dioxovanadate (V) Dihydrate." J. Amer.

Chem. Soc. 1971, 93, 3867-3872.

M.E. Schwartz, J.D. Switalski and R.E. Stronski. "Core Level Binding Energy Shifts from Molecular Orbital Theory." In "Electron Spectroscopy" (D.A. Shirley, Editor). 1972, 605-628, North Holland Publishing Company, Amsterdam.

*Under the Radiation Laboratory

Geology

W.M. Fairley. "Relationship of the Ashland-Wedowee Belt to the Great Smoky Group and the Murphy Marble Belt." In "Abstracts with Programs." 1972, p.72, Southeast. Sect., Geol. Soc. America.

Mathematics |

T. Nagano. "Calculus of variations in c. Large." (In Japanese). 1971, v + 171 "Calculus of Variations in the

pages. Kyoritsu Publ. Co., Tokyo.

A. Howard and B. Smyth. "Kähler Surfaces on Non-Negative Curvature." J. Differential

Geom. 1971, 5, 491-502. T. Nagano, with S. Kobayashi. "Riemannian Manifolds with Abundant Isometries." In "Differential Geometry, in Honor of K. Yano." 1972, 15-85, Kinokuniya Publ. Co., Tokyo.

W. Phan. "A Characterization of the Finite Groups PSL(n.g)." Math. Zeit. K-W. Phan.

1972, 124, 169-185. J. Wong. "Irreducible Modular Representa-W.J. Wong. "Irreducible Modular Rep tions of Finite Chevalley Groups." Algebra <u>1972</u>, 20, 355-367.

Microbiology

*M. Pollard. "Animal Model for Human Disease." Amer. J. Pathol. 1972, 67, 3,

*Under the Lobund Laboratory

Physics |

N.N. Biswas, N.M. Cason, E.A. Harrington, V.P. Kenney, and W.D. Shephard. "f°-A2 Interference and the f°+KK Branching

Ratio." Phys. Rev. 1972, D5, 1564.

N.N. Biswas, N.M. Cason, V.P. Kenney, W.D. Shephard, P.H. Smith, and P.T. Go, with J.W. Lamsa, R.B. Willmann, C.R. Ezell, and J.A. Gaidos. "Test of Helicity Conservation and Spin-Parity Analysis of the N*(1700)." Nucl. Phys. <u>1971</u>, B37, 364-37Ó.

P.R. Chagnon, with P.M. DeLucca, J.C. Lawson, and E.D. Berners. "Angular Co-orelation Studies in ³²S(³He, p^y)³⁴Cl."

Nucl. Phys. 1971, A173, 307-321. S.E. Darden, with H. Paetz gen. Scheick, "Search T.R. Donoghue, and R.M. Prior. for a Narrow State at 23.9 Me V in ${}^4\text{He}$ in the ${}^3\text{H}$ + p Channel." Nuclear Phys. 1971, A169, 71-75.

W.R. Johnson, with J.B. Mann. "Breit Inter-action in Multielectron Atoms." Phys.

Rev. 1971, A, 41-51.
W.D. Shephard, J.T. Powers, N.N. Biswas, N.M. Cason, V.P. Kenney, and D.W. Thomas, with M. Alston-Garnjost, K. Barnham, M.S. Robin, A. Barbaro-Galtieri, S.M. Flatte, J.F. Friedman, G.R. Lynch, J.N. MacNaughton, F.T. Solmitz, and C. Risk. "Energy Dependence of Inclusive in Pion-Induced Reactions." Phys. Letters <u>1972</u>, 39B, 402-406.

J.L. Shilts, CSC. "The Meaning of Com-munity." J. NAWDC 1972, 35, 103-109.

LAW

F.X. Beytaugh. "Some Observation Criticism of the Warren Court. "Some Observations on Recent

Vanderbilt Law Rev. <u>1971</u>, 24, 1053. V. McIntire. "The Environmental Movement: A Government Renewal Project." J. Insur-M.V. McIntire. ance, Negligence. Compensation Law Section, N. Y. St. Bar 1971, 1, 4-13.

M.V. McIntire. "Necessity in Condemnation Cases - Who Speaks for the People."

Hastings Law J. <u>1971</u>, 22, 561-585. R. Moo. "Credit Insurance Revisited: A P.R. Moo. Reply to the NAIC Staff Study." 1972, 48 pages. Consumer Credit Insurance Assocn.,

Chicago, Illinois.
Osakwe: "Contemporary Soviet Doctrine on C. Osakwe. the Juridicial Nature of Universal Inter-national Organization." Amer. J. Inter-

natl. Law 1971, 65, 502-521. E. Rice. "The Population Commission C.E. Rice. "The Population Commi-Report." Triumph, 1972, 7, 11.

T.L. Shaffer. "Estate Planning Games."
Notre Dame Lawyer 1972, 47, 865.

T.L. Shaffer. "In the Mountain." Poem.
Social Change 1971, 1, 3, 8.

T.L. Shaffer. "Of Men and Property."
Continuum 1971, 1, 2, 18.

T.L. Shaffer. "Of Men and Property."
Today's Educ. 1971, 60, 8, 24.

T.L. Shaffer. "Review of Donnell's The
Corporate Council." Indiana Law J. 1971, 46, 562.

T.L. Shaffer. "Review of Sussman's, Cates', and Smith's The Family and Inheritance."
U.C.L.A. Law Rev. 1971, 18, 844.
T.L. Shaffer. "The New Humanism." Univ. Albuquerque Ambassador 1971, 2, 3, 4.
T.L. Shaffer. "The Planning and Drafting of Wills and Trusts." 1972, xv + 292 pages. Fdtn. Press, Mineola, New York.
T.L. Shaffer. "Thirteen Rules for Academic Meetings." J. Legal Educ. 1971, 24, 73.

Monthly Summary

Awards Received

IN THE MONTH OF MAY, 1972

| Department or Office | Principal | Short title | Sponsor | Amount-\$ |
|------------------------------|-----------------------|--|-----------------------------|--------------------------|
| | | AWARDS FOR RESEARCH | | |
| Mathematics | Connolly | Geometric topology | Natl. Sci. Fdtn. | 5,600 1 yr. |
| Psychology | Borkowski, Whitman | Training program in mental retardation | William R. Hearst Fdtn. | 20,000 |
| Aerospace Mech. Eng. | Yang | Analysis of Detrick-Jens Scrubber | M.H. Detrick Co. | 900 |
| Mediaeval Institute | Gabriel | Frank M. Folsom microfilm and photographic collection | S.H. Kress Fdtn. | 37,000 |
| Metallurgical Eng. | Miller | Microstructure and wear in cobalt-base alloys | Welding Res. Council | 1,500 1 yr. |
| Microbiology- Lobund Lab. | Nordin | Cellular aspects of immune response | Natl. Inst. Health | 1 yr. 27,403 1 yr. |
| Physics | Khorana | Quantum properties of liquid helium | Natl. Bureau Standards | 1 yr. 15,000 1 yr. |
| Mathematics | Matsushima, Nagano | Lie groups and differential geometry | Natl. Sci. Fdtn. | 1 yr. 36,100 1 yr. |
| Mathematics | Stoll | Theory of several complex variables | Natl. Sci. Fdtn. | 1 yr. 32,000 1 yr. |
| Sociology Anthropology | Scott | Practice of polygyny among urban black males | Russell Sage Fdtn. | 1 yr. 5,000 1 yr. |
| Engineering | Hogan | Fellowships in engineering | Whirlpool Corp. | 1 yr. 12,130 1 yr. |
| Civil Eng. | Tenney | Graduate program in environmental health | Natl. Inst. Health | 1 yr. 33,978 1 yr. |
| Microbiology- Lobund Lab. | Downey | Biogenesis and control of ni- trate respiration in bacteria | Natl. Inst. Health | l yr. 13,615 1 yr. |
| Sociology Anthropology | Liu | Social science research training | Natl. Inst. Ment. Health | 1 yr. 52,964 1 yr. |
| Chemical Eng. | Banchero | Grant-in-aid | UOP Fdtn. | 1 yr. 500 1 yr. |
| | AWARDS | FOR FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT | | |
| Aerospace Mech. Eng. | Lloyd, Novotny | Purchase of data acquisition equipment | Natl. Sci. Fdtn. | 11,500 18 mos. |
| Accountancy | Powell | Grant-in-aid for equipment | Haskins Sells Fdtn. | 15,000 1 yr. |
| Chemistry | D'Alelio | Chemical supplies for research | Foster Grant Co., Inc. | 500 |

AWARDS FOR EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS

| | 71111 | The state of the s | | |
|-------------------------------|---|--|--------------------------|-----------------|
| Administration | Gordon | Fellowships | A.J. Schmitt Fdtn. | 40,000 l yr. |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin | Scholarship | Alcoa | 3,000 |
| Scholarships | | | Fdtn. | |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin | Scholarship | Bunker-Ramo | 500 |
| Scholarships | 11.0 | Caballanahin | Fdtn. | 1 500 |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin | Scholarship | Chrylser | 1,500 |
| Scholarships | McCauslin | Scholarship | Corp. Ellerbe | 1,500 |
| Financial Aid Scholarships | MCCausiin | Scholarship | Co. | . 1.,500 |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin | Scholarship | William F. Fox, Jr | 4,000 |
| Scholarships | nccaastiii | Scholarship | Schol. | . 1,000 |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin | Scholarship | Gen. Motors | 19,200 |
| Scholarships | | | Corp. | |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin | Scholarship | Goodyear Tire | 2,250 |
| Scholarships | | | Rubber Co. | |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin | Scholarship | Indiana Highway | 990 |
| Scholarships | | | Constructors | · · · · · · |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin . | Scholarship | Internatl. Nickel | 2,000 |
| Scholarships | | | Co. | |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin | Scholarship | Adrian Lopez | 300 |
| Scholarships | | | Schol. | |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin | Scholarship | Lubrizol | 500 |
| Scholarships | | | Fdtn. | 10 650 |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin | Scholarship | Proctor Gamble | 13,650 |
| Scholarships | MaCaualdu | Cabalanahin | Fund | 1,300 |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin | Scholarship | Radio Corp. | 1,300 |
| Scholarships Financial Aid | McCauslin | Scholarship | Amer. Alfred P. Sloan | 21,345 |
| Scholarships | nccausiin | 3 CHOT at SHIP | Fdtn. | 21,340 |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin | Scholarship | South Bend | 1,000 |
| Scholarships | 11COUUS I I II | 3011014131111 | Tribune | |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin | Scholarship | Louis Sudler | 500 |
| Scholarships | ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, | | Fdtn. | |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin | Scholarship | Uniroyal, Inc. | 1,725 |
| Scholarships | | | | |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin | Scholarship | Western Electric | 2,625 |
| Scholarships | | | Co. | |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin | James A. McCarthy scholarship | Dr. and Mrs. Otto | 10 |
| Scholarships | | Fund | Seeler . | |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin | James A. McCarthy scholarship | Prof. and Mrs. | 25 |
| Scholarships | W-C1 | Fund | Frank Montana | |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin | James A. McCarthy scholarship | Mr. and Mrs. Frank | |
| Scholarships Financial Aid | McCauslin | Fund James A. McCarthy scholarship | Miller Bernard T. | 25 |
| Scholarships | MCCausiiii | Fund | Loeffler | |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin | James A. McCarthy scholarship | Leo | 100 |
| Scholarships | ncouus (iii | Fund | Besozzi | |
| Financial Aid | McCauslin | James A. McCarthy scholarship | Elkhart Bridge | 25 |
| Scholarships | | Fund | Iron Co. | |
| Art Gallery | Lauck | Eighth print of Miserere | Leonard | 3,500 |
| | | Series | Scheller | |
| Art Gallery | Lauck | Nail fetish leopard from | Eric | 9,000 |
| | | the Congo | de Kolb | |
| Art Gallery | Lauck | Painting entitled "The | Robert | 1,250 |
| | | Window" | Hamilton | |
| Law | Shaffer | La Porte County legal | Ind. Crim Just. | 12,386 |
| | | intern program | Plan Ag. | <u>l yr.</u> |
| | | AWARD FOR SERVICE PROGRAM | | |
| Urban | Broden | Upward bound program | U.S. Off. | 93,500 |
| | | ophala bound blodiam | U.J. UII. | 20.000 |
| Studies | | | Educ. | l yr. |

Summary of Awards Received and Proposals Submitted

IN THE MONTH OF MAY, 1972

AWARDS RECEIVED

| | Ren | ewal | N | ew | | Total |
|---------------------------------------|-------------------|-------------------|-------|------------------|---------|----------------------|
| Category | No. | Amount | No. | Amount | No. | Amount |
| Research Facilities and Equipment | 8 \$ | 245,190 | 7 \$ | 48,500 27,000 | 15 3 | \$ 293,690 27,000 |
| Educational Programs Service Programs | 15 | 101,935 93,500 | 14 | 42,296 | 29 | 144,231 93,500 |
| Service Programs Total | 2 4 \$ | 440,625 | 24 \$ | 117,796 | 48 | \$ 558,421 |

PROPOSALS SUBMITTED

| | F | Renewal | | New | | | Total | |
|--|-----------------|---------|---------|--------------------|-------------|-----|---------------|--|
| Category | No. | | Amount | No. | Amount | No. | <u>Amount</u> | |
| Research | 5 | \$ | 191,362 | 13 | \$1,124,520 | 18 | \$1,315,882 | |
| Facilities and Equipment Educational Programs | 2 | | 67,932 | 2 | 14,440 | 4 | 82,372 | |
| Service Programs Total | 1 -7 | \$ | 259,294 | - 15 | \$1,138,960 | 22 | \$1,398,254 | |

Closing Dates for Selected Sponsored Programs

| Agency | Programs | Application Closing Dates | | |
|--|--|------------------------------------|--|--|
| National Endowment for the Humanities | Public Programs | August 1, 1972 | | |
| National Institute of Mental Health | Research Development Program | August 1, 1972 | | |
| National Science Foundation | Student Science Training (Pre-College) Cooperative College School Science Program | August 15, 1972 August 1, 1972 | | |
| U.S. Office of Education | Higher Education Personnel Training Summer Language and Area Program | August 1, 1972 Late summer 1972 | | |

documentation

Memorandum to Departmental and Fund Administrators from the Comptroller

EDITOR'S NOTE: Only the memorandum itself is printed in the $\underline{\text{Notre}}$ $\underline{\text{Dame}}$ $\underline{\text{Report}}$; the attachments mentioned in the memo are not included.

Memorandum to: Departmental and Fund Administrators

Subject: University Account Numbers

The University will implement a redesigned and reprogrammed accounting system effective July 1, 1972.

This revised accounting system incorporates an account numbering system that is likewise restructured.

The purpose of this memorandum is to furnish you with the new account numbers which must be used beginning July 1, 1972 for budget operations and funds subject to your supervision and control.

The new account number is a fifteen digit number with two component parts -- a budget unit component or a fund component of nine digits and an income or expense type component or six digits. The budget unit component or fund component designates respectively the department or fund affected by a transaction and the income or expense type component designates the specific kind of income or expense being recorded.

Previous University policy required administrators authorizing accounting transactions to designate only the budget unit or fund component of the account number. Commensurate with the implementation of the new system on July 1, 1972 it will be necessary for administrators authorizing accounting transactions to be responsible for furnishing the complete fifteen digit account number to be used in recording the transaction. The purpose of this procedural change is to insure that the person who is most knowledgeable about the fund source and the nature of the transaction classify it for accounting purposes.

The account numbers which you will need are presented on the following attachments, as applicable:

- I. Budget Units and Funds
- II. Types of Expense
 - A. General Purpose Group
 - B. Special Purpose Group
- III. Income Accounts

Attachment I lists the budget units and funds for which you are an administrator according to our records.

Attachments IIA and IIB list the account number components which are used to classify expenditures. Attachment IIB is included only if you are the administrator of a budget unit or fund requiring some special expense category. A narrative is included for certain accounts wherein the purpose might not be apparent from the title alone.

Attachment III lists income accounts and is included if operations subject to your control are of such nature as to require them. For your convenience income accounts are presented as complete fifteen digit numbers.

The account numbers furnished on the enclosed attachments should enable you to code the complete fifteen digit account number for all transactions which you would normally handle as a budget or fund administrator.

For expenditure of funds you select from Attachment I the nine digit budget unit or fund number to be charged and add to that number the six digit number from Attachment IIA or Attachment IIB that correctly describes the type of expense. The administrator, for example, of a budget unit that is assigned the number 1950-00004 would in submitting a requisition to the Purchasing Department to buy supplies, code that requisition with the number 1950-00004-920022.

For income items you simply select the number from those presented on Attachment III which appropriately describes the item.

Undoubtedly there will be instances of our having failed to furnish administrators with account numbers. Should this be the case, please contact the Comptroller's Office at extension 6401 and speak with Brother Richard Kyle, C.S.C., who will handle such omissions.

We believe the University's new accounting system will facilitate more timely and accurate reporting to all budget unit or fund administrators. The realization of this objective, however, requires that as an administrator you use faithfully and conscientiously the account numbers communicated herein.

This office will be available to assist any administrator with advice and clarification beyond that contained in this memorandum and its attachments.

Sincerely,

Richard M. Lynch Comptroller

AAUP Grievance Committee

During the spring semester, 1971, the executive committees of Notre Dame and Saint Mary's chapters of the American Association of University Professors recommended the creation of a grievance committee which might serve during the period of unification of the two institutions. Responding to this suggestion, Father Burtchaell, Provost, appointed such a committee last fall; Dr. Joseph Tihen, professor of biology at Notre Dame, was its chairman.

During the past academic year, no cases were brought to the attention of this committee. With unification between Saint Mary's College and the University of Notre Dame postponed indefinitely, the Grievance Committee is therefore disbanded.

Dr. Joseph Tihen Chairman

Final Report, 1972 Commencement Program Committee

This is the final report of the 1972 Commencement Program Committee, appointed by the Provost last fall to study past commencement programs and to make recommendations for the 1972 commencement exercises. Helpful suggestions by Professors Goerner and Costello and close cooperation with the Senior Class Commencement Committee headed by Tom Pifferetti resulted in the Commencement Program Committee submitting to the Provost the following recommendations which he accepted:

- 1. Discontinue Class Day. Valedictorian to speak at commencement.
- Discontinue awarding individual degrees to law students.
- Senior class be permitted to arrange music for Baccalaureate Mass.
- Faculty sit as a group with graduating seniors at Baccalaureate Mass.
- A cocktail-dinner arrangement be available for seniors and their quests.
- 6. Picnic lunch boxes be available for Sunday noon meal for seniors and guests.
- Department chairmen and faculty give out diplomas in North Dome of A.C.C. before commencement ceremonies begin. Purpose twofold: to personalize the reception of the degree and to eliminate the post-Commencement college distribution of diplomas.
- Faculty of each department march ahead of their seniors in the commencement procession.
- 9. Senior awards be announced by the Provost at commencement.

With the submission of this report, the 1972 Commencement Program Committee disbands. However, it would like to acknowledge the excellent cooperation it received from Dean Corbaci, Dean of Administration, and Mr. Sullivan, Registrar. Hopefully, these changes contributed to making the 1972 commencement exercises a memorable experience for our graduates and their guests.

Senior Class Commencement Committee

Tom Pifferetti, President James Bingle Jack Gillis Stephen Peck

Commencement Program Committee

Dean Leo Corbaci, Dean of Administration

Dean Robert Waddick, College of Arts and Letters

Mr. Richard Sullivan, Registrar

Mr. James Murphy, Assistant Vice President, Public Relations and Development

Mr. James V. Gibbons, Director of Special Projects
Mr. James Gorman, N.D. Class '68, a third year law student
Mr. Gregory Ranieri, N.D. Class '69, graduate student, electrical engineering
Mr. Eric Ward, N.D. class '69, graduate student, psychology

Dr. William Burke, chairman, Assistant Provost

Clerical staff's summer hours

To: All Chairmen, Department Heads and Supervisors

Again this summer for the period July 1, 1972 through September 1, 1972 the University will operate on an office hour schedule of from $8\ a.m.$ to $4:30\ p.m.$ for the clerical staff.

A half-hour will be allowed for the luncheon period. Offices are to be closed from noon to 12:30~p.m. for lunch uniformly across the campus.

Balloting on the summer schedule for the clerical staff was held this month and a significant majority voted in favor of this summer schedule. We trust that it will not cause any great inconvenience.

Sincerely yours,

Joseph F. O'Brien Director of Personnel Dean Joseph C. Hogan College of Engineering Box 309 Notre Dame, Ind. 46556

notre dame report

An official publication published fortnightly by the University of Notre Dame, Department of Information Services. Individual copies are available in the Notre Dame Hammes Bookstore at 30 cents. Mail subscriptions are \$6 an academic year.

June 30, 1972

Mary Catherine Stevens, Editor Publications Office, 209 Administration Building Notre Dame, Indiana 46556 219: 283-1234